
2017 Annual Review in summary

 • Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s non-life insurance operations in-
creased to SEK 7,207 M (4,626). Bonuses and discounts increased to SEK 1,696 M (1,202). 
Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance rose to SEK 25,504 M (24,073).

 • The technical result for the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s non-life insurance operations 
increased to SEK 2,538 M (1,813). The combined ratio improved to 92% (95).

 • Investment income for the Länsförsäkringar Alliance increased to SEK 6,993 M (5,009).

 • Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar AB Group increased to SEK 2,825 M (2,286). 
The return on equity amounted to 11% (10).

 • Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar AB’s non-life insurance operations increased to 
SEK 1,028 M (644). The combined ratio improved to 88% (92).

 • Operating profit for the Bank Group increased to SEK 1,599 M (1,467). Net interest 
income strengthened to SEK 3,996 M (3,464).

 • Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar Fondliv increased to SEK 600 M (512). Premium 
income rose to SEK 9,133 M (8,637). Commission income increased to SEK 1,583 M (1,412).

 • The Board of Länsförsäkringar AB proposes a dividend of SEK 300 M to the owners.

 • Profit for Länsförsäkringar Liv amounted to SEK 2,363 M (2,682). Solvency ratio rose to 
207% (195).

The year in brief Figures in parentheses pertain to the full-year 2016. Comment

The Länsförsäkringar Alliance can summarise very 
strong earnings for 2017. Operating profit for the 
non-life insurance operations increased to SEK 7.2 
billion, with strong investment income of SEK 7.0 
billion. The technical result also strengthened, with 
growth in premiums of 6% and a combined ratio of 
92%. Based on these healthy earnings, the regional 
insurance companies will pay back at   least SEK 1.4 
billion in bonuses to customers. 

The Länsförsäkringar AB Group also reports 
strong earnings for 2017 with an operating profit of 
SEK 2.8 billion. The combined ratio for Länsförsäk-
ringar AB’s non-life insurance operations improved 
to 88%. Agria is continuing to grow and in 2018 
France will become the fifth country Agria will ex-
pand to outside Sweden. Operating profit for the 
banking operations increased 9% to SEK 1.6 billion 
due to a continuously rising customer inflow. The 
unit-linked insurance operations also benefited 
from a positive net inflow and healthy value growth 
trend, which resulted in managed assets increasing 
12% to SEK 128 billion. Since  the Länsförsäkringar 
AB Group’s capital situation has strengthened in 
recent years, the Board of Länsförsäkringar AB 
proposes a dividend of SEK 300 M to the owners. 

The strong earnings reflect the key to Länsför-
säkringar’s success – the 23 regional insurance 
companies’ local presence and engagement, to-
gether with the economies of scale that the jointly 
owned Länsförsäkringar AB represents. In 2017, 
Länsförsäkringar once again topped the Swedish 
Quality Index’s customer satisfaction survey in 
banking, private non-life insurance and real-estate 
brokerage, won the Swedish Brand Award and the 
Red Dot Award for its app. The Länsförsäkringar 
Global Hållbar sustainability fund was given the 
green light by Söderberg & Partners and placed in 
its list of top ten Swedish sustainable funds. 

Johan Agerman left his position as President of 
Länsförsäkringar AB on 2 February. As former De-
puty President, I was appointed President while a 
permanent President is being recruited. The work 
that was initiated in 2017 on the long-term busi-
ness plan for Länsförsäkringar AB is continuing ac-
cording to schedule. 

Sören Westin
President and CEO of Länsförsäkringar AB  
The Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s jointly owned company

12 February 2018

 • Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s non-life insurance operations 
increased to SEK 1,014 M (977). Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance rose to  
SEK 6,561 M (6,447).

 • The technical result for the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s non-life insurance operations 
increased to SEK 1,092 M (499). The combined ratio improved to 85% (94).

 • Investment income for the Länsförsäkringar Alliance amounted to SEK 1,780 M (584). 
Solvency capital rose SEK 1,748 M to SEK 66,093 M.

 • Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar AB Group amounted to SEK 624 M (704). The 
return on equity was 10% (10). Equity rose SEK 579 M to SEK 24,857 M.

 • Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar AB’s non-life insurance operations increased to 
SEK 247 M (155). The combined ratio improved to 75% (91).

 • Operating profit for the Bank Group totalled SEK 432 M (429). Net interest income 
amounted to SEK 1,070 M (1,015).

 • Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar Fondliv amounted to SEK 146 M (164). Premium 
income rose to SEK 2,211 M (2,170). Commission income amounted to SEK 411 M (407).

 • Profit for Länsförsäkringar Liv amounted to SEK –201 M (503).

Fourth quarter of 2017 compared with  
third quarter of 2017

lansforsakringar.se

Länsförsäkringar Alliance



The Länsförsäkringar Alliance comprises 23 local and customer-owned 
regional insurance companies and the jointly owned Länsförsäkringar AB. 
Customers are provided with a complete offering of banking, insurance 
and real-estate brokerage services through the regional insurance 
companies. 

The starting point is local presence and decision-making. Experien-
ce shows that local decision-making authority combined with joint 
 strength creates substantial added value for customers.

Long-term respect for customers’ money is fundamental. There 
are no external shareholders; it is the customers’ money that is being 
managed. This approach characterises the entire business. 

The Länsförsäkringar Alliance has 3.8 million customers and 6,400 
employees. The Länsförsäkringar Alliance is not a Group in the legal sense 
of the term. Most of the non-life insurance business in the Länsförsäk-
ringar Alliance is underwritten in the regional insurance companies. 

The business conducted by Länsförsäkringar AB’s non-life insu-
rance group primarily comprises health, pet and crop insurance, and 
some cargo, liability, property and motor insurance. The Länsförsäk-
ringar AB Group also manages the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s reinsu-
rance cover and assumed international reinsurance. Earnings from 
the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s non-life insurance operations consist 
of the total earnings of the 23 regional insurance companies and the 
Länsförsäkringar AB Group, excluding Länsförsäkringar Fondliv and 
the Länsförsäkringar Bank Group. 

Länsförsäkringar Liv is operated according to mutual principles 
and is not consolidated in Länsförsäkringar AB. Transactions between 
the regional insurance companies and Länsförsäkringar AB Group 
have been eliminated.

Rating
Company Agency Long-term rating Short-term rating

Länsförsäkringar AB S & P Global Ratings A–/Stable –

Länsförsäkringar AB Moody’s A3/Stable –

Länsförsäkringar Bank S & P Global Ratings A/Stable A–1(K–1)

Länsförsäkringar Bank Moody’s A1/Stable P–1

Länsförsäkringar Hypotek1) S & P Global Ratings AAA/Stable –

Länsförsäkringar Hypotek1) Moody’s Aaa –

Länsförsäkringar Sak S & P Global Ratings A/Stable –

Länsförsäkringar Sak Moody’s A2/Stable –

Länsförsäkringar Alliance Market commentary

1) Pertains to the company’s covered bonds.

3.8 million customers

23 local regional insurance companies

Länsförsäkringar AB

Länsförsäkringar  
Bank A

B

Länsförsäkringar Sak 
Försäkrings A

B

Länsförsäkringar  
Fondliv Försäkrings A

B

* The company is operated according to mutual principles and is not consolidated in Länsförsäkringar AB.

Länsförsäkringar Liv 
Försäkrings A

B*

A sense of optimism prevailed in the economy during 2017, with the 
global economy growing stronger. The largest surprise was Europe’s 
performance where the economy clearly surged and growth ex-
ceeded expectations. However, inflation remained far short of tar-
gets, which means that the ECB is expected to maintain its expansive 
monetary policy. The US economy also trended positively, particularly 
the strong labour market, although inflation was lower than anticipa-
ted, which led to the Fed continuing its austerity measures in mone-
tary policy at a restrained rate and increased interest rates three ti-
mes. The Republican tax reform slightly raised expectations of US 
growth in 2018, further fuelling stock market performance. In gene-
ral, the global economy was surprisingly stable in 2017, particularly in 
light of the political risks that dominated the news. The UK applied to 
leave the EU, Germany experienced difficulties in forming a govern-
ment and the US markedly elevated its tone towards North Korea, 
while risks in the Middle East increased. Stock markets generally 
posted a favourable trend for the year, led by emerging markets.

The fixed-income market reported no major fluctuations during 
the year. Long-term US interest rates moved sideways following a 
sharp upswing towards the end of 2016, while short-term rates track-
ed the Fed’s three rate hikes. Swedish and European long-term inte-
rest rates ended 2017 slightly higher than at the start of the year and 
short-term rates fell marginally. Rates on Swedish covered bonds fell 
during the year and demand from investors was good.

The Swedish economy performed strongly during the year; growth 
was surprisingly positive, the labour market continued to improve and 
inflation rose. The employment rate is now well above levels prior to 
the financial crisis of 2008. Nevertheless, the Riksbank decided to 
wait out interest rate increases, and the repo rate has been negative 
for almost three years. The SEK strengthened against the USD but 
weakened against the EUR during the year. Continued expansive sig-
nals from the Riksbank, a degree of concern regarding the Swedish 
housing market and a stronger EUR underpinned this trend. Housing 
prices generally show seasonal variations with a weaker performance 
towards the end of the year, yet 2017 reported considerably weaker 
figures than normal and housing prices, excluding seasonal variations, 
fell 5.3% in the second half of the year. The Swedish Financial Supervi-
sory Authority’s decision to introduce a stricter repayment require-
ment combined with a temporarily high supply of new-builds may 
have accelerated this development. Looking forward, the housing 
market has now become a more distinct risk for the Swedish ecnomy, 
even though the underlying economic conditions for the households 
remain unchanged.
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Report commented on the development 2017 compared to the same period in 2016, unless otherwise stated.
Amounts are in SEK, unless otherwise stated.

Financial overview

Länsförsäkringar Alliance
Q 4 2017 Q 3 2017 Q 2 2017 Q 1 2017 Q 4 2016 Full-year 2017 Full-year 2016

Total capital, SEK M 72,386 70,189 68,185 65,709 63,390 72,386 63,390

Non-life insurance

Solvency capital, SEK M 66,093 64,345 62,772 59,963 57,956 66,093 57,956

Solvency margin, % 252 252 246 238 236 252 236

Return on equity, % 10 12 16 14 8 11 8

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance, SEK M 6,561 6,447 6,366 6,129 6,141 25,504 24,073

Technical result, SEK M 1,092 499 428 520 632 2,538 1,813

Operating profit, SEK M 1,014 977 3,050 2,166 1,081 7,207 4,626

Combined ratio, % 85 94 95 94 92 92 95

Länsförsäkringar AB, Group1) 

Q 4 2017 Q 3 2017 Q 2 2017 Q 1 2017 Q 4 2016 Full-year 2017 Full-year 2016

Operating profit, SEK M 624 704 671 826 542 2,825 2,286

Total assets, SEK M 473,773 464,563 454,846 446,558 421,816 473,773 421,816

Return on equity, % 10 10 11 12 10 11 10

Own funds for the group (FRL)2) , SEK M 44,172 42,408 41,567 41,613 40,602 44,172 40,602

Solvency capital requirement for the group (FRL)2), SEK M 33,441 31,185 30,412 30,625 30,121 33,441 30,121

Own funds for the financial conglomerate3) , SEK M 44,172 42,408 41,562 41,554 40,352 44,172 40,352

Capital requirement for the financial conglomerate3), SEK M 33,441 31,185 30,412 30,625 30,121 33,441 30,121

Länsförsäkringar Sak, Group
Q 4 2017 Q 3 2017 Q 2 2017 Q 1 2017 Q 4 2016 Full-year 2017 Full-year 2016

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance, SEK M 1,427 1,409 1,414 1,373 1,353 5,623 5,342

Technical result, SEK M 368 132 80 397 104 977 435

Operating profit, SEK M 247 155 197 428 183 1,028 644

Solvency ratio, % (Länsförsäkringar Sak Försäkrings AB) 221 273 260 257 260 221 260

Länsförsäkringar Bank, Group
Q 4 2017 Q 3 2017 Q 2 2017 Q 1 2017 Q 4 2016 Full-year 2017 Full-year 2016

Deposits from the public, SEK M 99,404 99,314 97,144 91,888 91,207 99,404 91,207

Loans to the public, SEK M 261,444 251,667 242,249 232,187 226,705 261,444 226,705

Operating profit, SEK M 432 429 385 353 391 1,599 1,467

Return on equity, % 10.4 10.6 9.8 9.1 10.3 10.0 10.1

Tier 1 ratio Bank Group, % 24.3 24.2 24.3 24.2 24.8 24.3 24.8

Länsförsäkringar Fondliv
Q 4 2017 Q 3 2017 Q 2 2017 Q 1 2017 Q 4 2016 Full-year 2017 Full-year 2016

Premium income (rolling 12-months), SEK M 9,133 9,094 8,995 8,800 8,637 9,133 8,637

Operating profit, SEK M 146 164 154 136 126 600 512

Managed assets, SEK M 128,140 123,990 121,897 119,794 114,450 128,140 114,450

Solvency ratio, % 152 159 160 156 150 152 150

Länsförsäkringar Liv, Group (not consolidated in Länsförsäkringar AB)

Q 4 2017 Q 3 2017 Q 2 2017 Q 1 2017 Q 4 2016 Full-year 2017 Full-year 2016

Premium income after ceded reinsurance, SEK M 381 361 379 412 438 1,533 1,720

Profit, SEK M –201 503 1,036 1,025 572 2,363 2,682

Managed assets, SEK M 115,128 114,971 115,510 115,957 115,784 115,128 115,784

Solvency ratio, % (Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB) 207 226 229 209 195 207 195

1) Excluding Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB. The company is operated in accordance with mutual principles.
2)  According to Swedish Insurance Business Act (FRL), Solvens II directive in Swedish law.
3)  The finanicial conglomerate comprises Länsförsäkringar AB, all insurance companies in the Group, Länsförsäkringar Bank AB with subsidiaries and Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB.
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Non-life insurance

 • Operating profit increased to SEK 7,207 M (4,626), benefiting from highly favourable investment income of  
SEK 6,993 M (5,009).

 • Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance rose 5.9% to SEK 25,504 M (24,073).
 • The technical result increased to SEK 2,538 M (1,813).
 • The combined ratio improved to 92% (95), with a claims ratio of 74% (75).
 • Solvency capital increased SEK 8,137 M during the period to SEK 66,093 M.

The year in brief Figures in parentheses pertain to the same period in 2016.

Non-life insurance, Länsförsäkringar Alliance

Key figures, SEK M
Q 4 

2017
Q 3 

2017
Q 2 

2017
Q 1 

2017
Q 4 

2016
Full-year  

2017
Full-year   

2016

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance 6,561 6,447 6,366 6,129 6,141 25,504 24,073

Technical result 1,092 499 428 520 632 2,538 1,813

Bonuses and discounts –1,475 –73 –74 –73 –909 –1,696 –1,202

Total investment income 1,780 584 2,777 1,852 1,625 6,993 5,009

Operating profit 1,014 977 3,050 2,166 1,081 7,207 4,626

Solvency capital 66,093 64,345 62,772 59,963 57,956 66,093 57,956

Solvency margin, % 252 252 246 238 246 252 236

Expense ratio, % 18 17 19 19 23 18 19

Claims ratio, % 67 77 76 75 69 74 75

Combined ratio, % 85 94 95 94 92 92 95

Earnings
Earnings from the Länsförsäkringar Allian-
ce’s non-life insurance operations consist of 
the total earnings of the 23 regional insuran-
ce companies and the Länsförsäkringar AB 
Group, excluding Länsförsäkringar Fondliv 
and the Länsförsäkringar Bank Group. 

Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar 
Alliance’s non-life insurance operations in-
creased to SEK 7,207 M (4,626). The strong 
earnings were mainly due to highly favour-
able investment income that increased to 
SEK 6,993 M (5,009). The technical result im-
proved to SEK 2,538 M (1,813) due to solid 
premium growth and a moderate increase in 
claims payments. The claims ratio improved 
to 74% (75). The expense ratio fell to 18% (19) 
and the combined ratio improved to 92% 
(95). 

Solvency capital increased SEK 8,137 M in 
2017, amounting to SEK 66,093 M on 31 De-
cember 2017. The solvency margin amounted 
to 252% (236). 

Business volumes 
Länsförsäkringar continued to strengthen its 
leading position in the Swedish non-life insu-
rance market with a market share of 30.5% 
for the third quarter of 2017, according to 
statistics from Insurance Sweden. 

Premiums earned increased 5.9% to SEK 
25,504 M (24,073). Both portfolio and premi-
um increases contributed to the increase. 
Private insurance increased 6.7%, with 
growth continuing to be driven by household, 
homeowner and accident insurance. Agria 
reported robust growth, particularly in its in-
ternational operations. The commercial seg-
ment increased strongly by 7.7%, primarily 
driven by healthy growth in commercial pro-

perty and commercial insurance. Premiums 
earned in the motor insurance segment rose 
5.7%, driven by both portfolio and premium 
increases. Länsförsäkringar’s growth in the 
motor insurance segment remained stronger 
than total market growth, which  according 
to Insurance Sweden was 3.0% for the third 
quarter of 2017. Premiums earned in the agri-
culture segments rose 3.2%. 

Claims trend 
Claims payments after ceded reinsurance 
amounted to SEK 18,570 M (17,942), up 3.5%. 
The claims ratio fell to 74% (75). The trend 
from earlier quarters in 2017 persisted with 
lower claims costs for accident and water 
damage, but higher costs for fire damage 
and motor insurance claims. 

Länsförsäkringar sees a clear connection 
between the claims trend and the distraction 
of using a mobile telephone while driving. 
Claims costs for young car owners have in-
creased markedly by 30-40% in the past five 
years. Länsförsäkringar welcome the new 
Swedish law that came into effect on 1 Fe-
bruary 2018 that bans drivers from holding a 
mobile in their hands while driving. 

Most of the Länsförsäkringar’s non-life insurance business is underwritten by the regional insurance companies. Earnings from the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s non-life 
insurance operations consist of the total earnings of the 23 regional insurance companies and the Länsförsäkringar AB Group, excluding Länsförsäkringar Fondliv and 
the Länsförsäkringar Bank Group. 
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Investment income 
The favourable performance of the global 
stock markets in the fourth quarter, particular-
ly in emerging markets, was reflected in the 
Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s investment income 
of SEK 1,780 M for the fourth quarter. This re-
sulted in very healthy investment income for 
2017 of SEK 6,993 M (5,009). Investment inco-
me amounted to 7% of the asset value at the 
end of 2017, driven by high returns on equities 
investments and properties. 

 Equities   Interest-bearing 

 Property   Other 

Total investment assets amounted to SEK 101.3 billion  
on 31 December 2017.

Allocation of investment assets 

41.8%

20.9%

29.1%

8.2%
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Bank

 • Operating profit increased 9% to SEK 1,599 M (1,467) with a return on equity of 10.0% (10.1).

 • Net interest income increased 15% to SEK 3,996 M (3,464).

 • Business volumes increased to SEK 520 billion (456). Deposits rose to SEK 99 billion (91) and lending increased to 
SEK 261 billion (227).

 • The number of customers with Länsförsäkringar as their primary bank rose 11% and the number of bank cards 
increased 13%.

The year in brief Figures in parentheses pertain to the same period in 2016.

Länsförsäkringar Bank, Group

Key figures, SEK M
Q 4 

2017
Q 3 

2017
Q 2 

2017
Q 1 

2017
Q 4 

2016
Full-year  

2017
Full-year   

2016

Deposits from the public 99,404 99,314 97,144 91,888 91,207 99,404 91,207

Loans to the public 261,444 251,667 242,249 232,187 226,705 261,444 226,705

Operating profit 432 429 385 353 391 1,599 1,467

Return on equity, % 10.4 10.6 9.8 9.1 10.3 10.0 10.1

Cost/income ratio before loan losses 0.49 0.46 0.51 0.51 0.50 0.49 0.48

Earnings
The Länsförsäkringar Bank Group’s operating 
profit increased 9% to SEK 1,599 M (1,467), 
due to higher net interest income. Net inte-
rest income rose 15% to SEK 3,996 M (3,464) 
attributable to increased volumes and lower 
refinancing costs. The return on equity 
amounted to 10.0% (10.1). 

Operating income includes SEK 42 M in 
dividends received from the sale of the hol-
ding in Visa Europe. Net losses from financial 
items amounted to SEK –49 M (gains: 68) due 
to unrealised changes in the market value of 
financial items. Net commission amounted to 
SEK –750 M (–662) due to higher remuneration 
to the regional insurance companies as a result 
of a healthy volume trend and strengthened 
profitability in the business.
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Bank Group’s operating profit and return on 
equity

Expenses
Operating expenses increased 14% to SEK 
1,601 M (1,399), of which 7 percentage points 
was due to higher staff costs associated with 
additional personnel from Länsförsäkringar 
AB to the Bank Group’s Business Service unit 
and the Economic Research Department, 
and the recruitment of new fund managers 
at Länsförsäkringar Fondförvaltning. The un-
derlying cost increase amounted to 7% part-
ly attributable to initiatives for future-orien-
ted IT investments. 

The cost/income ratio before loan losses 
amounted to 0.49 (0.48). 

Loan losses 
Loan losses amounted to SEK 58 M (38*), net, 
corresponding to a loan loss level of 0.02% 
(0.02). Impaired loans, gross, amounted to 
SEK 278 M (240), corresponding to a percen-
tage of impaired loans, gross, of 0.11% (0.11). 
Reserves totalled SEK 268 M (250), corres-
ponding to a reserve ratio in relation to loans 
of 0.10% (0.11). In addition, SEK 88 M (130) of 
the remuneration to the regional insurance 
companies’ credit-risk commitments for ge-
nerated business is withheld in accordance 
with the settlement model. The reserve ratio 
in relation to loans, including withheld remu-
neration to the regional insurance compa-
nies, was 0.14% (0.17). 
*The comparative figure includes dissolution of reserves of SEK 23 M.

Business volumes
Business volumes increased 14% to SEK 520 
billion (456). Lending increased 15% to SEK 
261 billion (227) with continued high credit 
quality. Lending in Länsförsäkringar Hypotek 
increased 17% to SEK 198 billion (169). Depo-
sits increased 9% to SEK 99 billion (91). The 
fund volume increased 15% to SEK 159 billion 
(138).

 Retail mortgages  Customer deposits 

 Agricultural loans  Funds  Other loans

Business volumes for the Bank Group
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Länsförsäkringar offers banking services through Länsförsäkringar Bank, which is part of the Länsförsäkringar AB Group. The 23 regional insurance companies are 
responsible for the bank’s customer contact, while Länsförsäkringar AB is responsible for conducting joint business activities, strategic development activities and 
providing service.
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Funding
The Bank Group has a low refinancing risk 
and the maturity structure is highly diversi-
fied. Debt securities in issue increased to a 
nominal SEK 183 billion (152), of which cove-
red bonds amounted to SEK 147 billion (122), 
senior long-term funding to SEK 35 billion 
(29) and short-term funding to SEK 1 billion 
(1). The average remaining term for the long-
term funding was 3.5 years (3.3) on 31 De-
cember 2017. 

Covered bonds were issued during the 
year at a volume corresponding to a nominal 
SEK 39 billion (31), repurchased covered 
bonds to a nominal SEK 7 billion (8) and ma-
tured covered bonds to a nominal SEK 7 bil-
lion (8). Länsförsäkringar Bank issued senior 
unsecured bonds in the nominal amount of 
SEK 14 billion (8) during the year. 

In March, Länsförsäkringar Hypotek issu-
ed a seven-year Euro benchmark-covered 
bond for a nominal EUR 500 M and in Sep-
tember Länsförsäkringar Bank issued a seni-
or unsecured five-year Euro bond for a nomi-
nal EUR 500 M. The transaction was the first 
step of a long-term strategy to also build up 
an investor base in the Euro market for seni-
or funding. In addition, Länsförsäkringar Hy-
potek issued two Swedish benchmark bonds 
during the year, LFH516 and LFH517, which 
mature in September 2023 and September 
2024, respectively.
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Liquidity
On 31 December 2017, the liquidity reserve 
totalled SEK 48 billion (42). The liquidity re-
serve is invested in securities with very high 
credit quality that are eligible for transac-
tions with the Riksbank and, where appropri-
ate, with the ECB. By utilising the liquidity re-
serve, contractual undertakings can be met 
for more than two years without needing to 
secure new funding in the capital market. 

The Group’s Liquidity Coverage Ratio 
(LCR) for the consolidated situation accor-
ding to the Swedish Financial Supervisory 
Authority’s definition amounted to 202% 
(169) and according to the European Com-
mission’s delegated act to 339% (342) at 31 
December 2017. The Net Stable Funding Ratio 
(NSFR) for the consolidated situation 
amounted to 116%* (116) on 31 December 
2017. 

*The calculation is based on Länsförsäkringar Bank’s interpretation 
of the Basel Committee’s most recent Net Stable Funding Ratio 
proposal. The comparative figure pertains to 30 September 2017.
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Life assurance and pension insurance

 • Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar Fondliv increased to SEK 600 M (512).

 • Total managed assets for Länsförsäkringar Fondliv increased to SEK 128 billion (114).

 • Profit for Länsförsäkringar Liv amounted to SEK 2,363 M (2,682).

 • Total managed assets for Länsförsäkringar Liv amounted to SEK 115 billion (116).

The year in brief Figures in parentheses pertain to the same period in 2016.

Länsförsäkringar Fondliv and Länsförsäkringar Liv

Key figures, SEK M
Q 4 

2017
Q 3 

2017
Q 2 

2017
Q 1 

2017
Q 4 

2016
Full-year  

2017
Full-year   

2016

Länsförsäkringar Fondliv

Premium income, net (rolling 12 months) 9,133 9,094 8,995 8,800 8,637 9,133 8,637

Operating profit 146 164 154 136 126 600 512

Managed assets 128,140 123,990 121,897 119,794 114,450 128,140 114,450

Solvency ratio, % 152 159 160 156 150 152 150

Länsförsäkringar Liv  
(not consolidated in Länsförsäkringar AB)

Profit –201 503 1,036 1,025 572 2,363 2,682

Managed assets 115,128 114,971 115,510 115,957 115,784 115,128 115,784

Collective consolidation ratio, New Trad, % 117 117 117 117 114 117 114

Collective consolidation ratio, Old Trad, % 123 123 123 122 125 123 125

Solvency ratio, % 207 226 229 209 195 207 195
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Earnings for Länsförsäkringar Fondliv
Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar Fondliv 
strengthened in 2017 to SEK 600 M (512), pri-
marily due to increased income from 
growing managed assets. 

Total managed assets increased SEK 14 
billion to SEK 128 billion (114) on 31 December 
2017. The increase was mainly the result of a 
high value growth trend due to a favourable 
stock-market climate, but also a positive net 
inflow from existing and new customers. 

Total premium income increased 6% to 
SEK 9,133 M (8,637), of which capital trans-
ferred to the company accounted for SEK 
1,444 M (1,321). Premium income after ceded 
reinsurance for insurance risk increased to 
SEK 198 M (173). Commission income, which 
is strongly linked to managed assets, increa-
sed to SEK 1,583 M (1,412). 

Operating expenses rose to SEK 1,028 M 
(973), primarily due to higher distribution and 
administration expenses from increased bu-
siness volumes. Investments were also made 
in digital development, such as the launch of 
a digital purchase service where self-employed 
persons can take out occupational pensions 
directly online. 

Capital situation
Länsförsäkringar Fondliv’s capital situation is 
expressed and measured in accordance with 
Solvency II as a ratio of own funds in relation 
to risk-based capital requirements. Länsför-
säkringar Fondliv’s solvency ratio on 31 De-
cember 2017 amounted to 152% (150).  

Länsförsäkringar Fondliv’s unit-linked 
insurance and guarantee management
Unit-linked insurance
Slightly more than 90% of the funds in the 
total fund range performed positively in 2017. 
More than 50% of the funds increased by 
more than 10%, with no funds declining more 
than 10%. 2017 was a positive stock-market 

year that resulted in a favourable perfor-
mance for many equities funds. Equities 
funds investing in Asia, small companies and 
technology reported the strongest trend. 
The performance of funds targeting commo-
dities, Russia and certain hedge funds was 
weaker. 

According to Insurance Sweden’s market 
statistics for the third quarter of 2017, Länsför-
säkringar Fondliv remains the market leader in 
the unit-linked insurance market for individual 
occupational pensions, with a market share of 
19.1% measured in premium income and 21.0% 
measured in new sales. 

Both the scope and quality of Länsförsäk-
ringar’s fund range were expanded in 2017, as 
part of realising a new fund strategy of simplifi-
cations and also greater choice for customers. 
More than 30 new funds from several different 
fund companies were launched. The funds in the 
recommended range are carefully analysed and 
assessed based on criteria including manage-
ment organisation, return and sustainability. 

Guarantee Management
Länsförsäkringar Fondliv offers management 
of pension insurance carrying a guarantee 

element regarding paid-in premiums. The gu-
arantee principle is that the customer re-
coups premiums paid in to savings, but with 
the possibility of additional returns. Full gua-
rantee, meaning “at least your premium 
back” applies for a minimum ten-year savings 
period. A sliding scale is applied to shorter 
savings periods, with the guarantee at 80% 
of paid-in premiums for periods of five to ten 
years until retirement, and a minimum of 
70% of paid-in premiums with less than five 
years until retirement. The assets are divided 
between equity and interest-bearing invest-

Länsförsäkringar offers life-assurance and pension solutions to corporate customers and private individuals. Fund management, Guarantee Management and personal-risk 
insurance are offered through Länsförsäkringar Fondliv. No new policies are underwritten in Länsförsäkringar Liv, and the company manages traditional life assurance 
that was taken out before it was closed in 2011. Länsförsäkringar Liv is operated according to mutual principles and is not consolidated in Länsförsäkringar AB.
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ments, with the interest-bearing portion 
always being at least 40% and the equities 
portion may be as low as zero. On 31 Decem-
ber 2017, 65% of the investments comprised 
interest-bearing investments and 35% equities.

Managed assets amounted to SEK 3.1 bil-
lion (2.9). The return rose to 6.0% (5.3). Both 
equity and interest-bearing investments 
made a positive contribution to the total return.

Earnings for Länsförsäkringar Liv
Profit for Länsförsäkringar Liv amounted to 
SEK 2,363 M (2,682). The positive earnings 
derive from a positive investment income in 
New and Old Trad, and transitions from Old 
Trad to New Trad, which continued to           
strengthen earnings through lower technical 
provisions.

Changes in market interest rates affect 
Länsförsäkringar Liv’s earnings with rising 
market interest rates leading to lower liabili-
ties to policyholders since future commit-
ments are discounted with the market inte-
rest rate. However, the company can largely 
protect itself from interest-rate changes im-
pacting earnings by matching assets and lia-
bilities against each other. In 2017 about 80% 
of the interest-rate sensitivity of liabilities 
was matched, generating a positive earnings 
effect of about SEK 100 M when long-term 
market interest rates rose. The Swedish ten-
year government bond rate increased by just 
under 25 basis points. 

Liabilities to policyholders declined SEK 
2.0 billion (1.2) during the period, primarily 
due to negative cash flows, meaning that 
payouts and external transfers exceeded 
premium payments. The assumption for fu-
ture operating expenses was adjusted in 
2017, which led to higher liabilities of SEK 685 
M. The increase in the expense assumptions 
is because the company is closed for new 
business and thus the insurance portfolio 
decreases over time, which is expected to 
lead to a slightly higher unit cost over time.

Operating expenses fell to SEK 417 M 
(447) in 2017, mainly due to lower develop-
ment costs. 

Investment income was positive for all 
management portfolios and totalled SEK 4.8 
billion (6.0). New World contributed SEK 1.4 
billion, which does not affect earnings and 
instead is transferred directly to the policy-
holders.

In December 2017, Länsförsäkringar Liv 
divested two property-owning subsidiaries 
to Humlegården Fastigheter AB (publ) (refer-
red to below as Humlegården) in exchange 
for payment in newly issued shares in Hum-
legården and cash and cash equivalents. Ba-

sed on this transaction, Länsförsäkringar Liv 
became the second largest owner of Humle-
gården with a holding of 11.6%. The transac-
tion better diversifies Länsförsäkringar Liv’s 
property exposure and provides an interest 
in a property portfolio that is deemed to be 
of high quality with great potential.

Länsförsäkringar Liv is operated accor-
ding to mutual principles and is not consoli-
dated in Länsförsäkringar AB. 

Capital situation 
Länsförsäkringar Liv’s capital situation is ex-
pressed and measured in accordance with 
Solvency II as a ratio of own funds in relation 
to risk-based capital requirements. Länsför-
säkringar Liv’s solvency ratio on 31 Decem-
ber 2017 increased to 207% (195). 

Collective consolidation is calculated as 
the ratio between total capital and insurance 
capital. 

Collective consolidation on 31 December 
2017 amounted to 117% (114) in New Trad and 
123% (125) in Old Trad.

Länsförsäkringar Liv has worked actively 
on measures to strengthen the company’s 
balance sheet and own funds for several 
years. A strengthened balance sheet provi-
des the company with greater flexibility and 
opportunities to invest in asset classes with 
higher expected returns. These measures 
have resulted in equity strengthening from 
SEK 10.9 billion to SEK 24.4 billion between 
2012 and 2017. 

Transitions from Old Trad to New Trad 
also contributed to the strengthened capital 
situation in 2017. Such transitions to New 
Trad have strengthened own funds by a total 
of SEK 4.8 billion since 2013, whereof SEK 0.4 
billion in 2017.

Länsförsäkringar Liv’s traditional 
management
Länsförsäkringar Liv, which is closed for new 
business, conducts traditional life assurance 
for its customers divided into four portfolios: 
New Trad, Old Trad, New World and Insured 
Pension. Total managed assets amounted to 
SEK 115 billion (116). 

New Trad 
Länsförsäkringar Liv customers with tradi-
tionally managed insurance have had the op-
portunity to transition their existing insuran-
ce to New Trad since 2013. Transitions from 
Old Trad to New Trad involve lower fees and a 
reduction in the guaranteed rate. The redu-
ced guarantee rate allows capital in New Trad 
to be invested in assets that have higher ex-
pected returns. 

Managed assets in New Trad amounted to 
SEK 21 billion (18). Investments as at 31 De-
cember 2017 comprised 60% interest-bea-
ring investments, 34% equities, 4% alternati-
ve investments and 2% properties. The total 
share of interest-bearing investments incre-
ased slightly in 2017. Investment income for 
New Trad amounted to 6.4% (4.3). The return 
was mainly attributable to equities invest-
ments, which contributed 5.5 percentage 
points. 

The bonus rate on 31 December 2017 was 
6% (4). The bonus rate was raised from 5% to 
6% on 1 October 2017. The average bonus 
rate since New Trad started in 2013 has been 
6.4%. 

Old Trad 
In Old Trad, Länsförsäkringar Liv manages 
assets of SEK 81 billion (85) on behalf of its 
customers. The aim of risk-taking in the Old 
Trad investment portfolio, given the prevail-
ing low interest-rate environment, is to en-
sure that the guaranteed bonus can be reali-
sed also in the event of a negative market 
trend. At the same time, balanced risk-taking 
is applied to facilitate a reasonable return on 
customers’ savings. 

A large portion of the capital comprised 
long-term interest-bearing investments in 
2017. Investments as at 31 December 2017 
comprised 87% interest-bearing invest-
ments, 7% equities, 4% alternative invest-
ments and 2% properties. Investment inco-
me amounted to 2.7% (5.9). 

The bonus rate for 2017 was unchanged 
at 2%. 

New World 
New World is a traditional insurance policy 
whereby customers benefit from upturns on 
the equities market, while at the same time 
are guaranteed to recoup at least the premi-
ums paid, after deductions for expenses and 
yield tax. 

Managed assets amounted to SEK 12 bil-
lion (11). The percentage of equities for the 
New World management form is normally 
70% and the remaining 30% comprises inte-
rest-bearing investments. However, the in-
vestment mix can vary within defined inter-
vals, with the percentage of equities comp-
rising 60–80%. Investment income amoun-
ted to 13.3% (5.1).
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Real-estate brokerage

Through Länsförsäkringar Fastighets-
förmedling, Länsförsäkringar offers 
a total solution for reliable mortgage 
transactions: real-estate brokerage, 
banking and insurance services all 
in one company. Real-estate bro-
kerage is also a key customer me-
eting for sales of mortgages and 
insurance.

Länsförsäkringar Fastighetsförmedling has 
160 branches across Sweden. Strong growth 
has advanced Länsförsäkringar Fastighets-

förmedling to the position of third largest 
brokerage in Sweden. Länsförsäkringar  
Fastighetsförmedling is Sweden’s fastest 
growing estate-agent chain and for the se-
cond consecutive year had the most satis-
fied customers according to the Swedish 
Quality Index’s customer satisfaction survey 
for the estate-agent industry. 

The real-estate brokerage is an integra-
ted part of the local regional insurance com-
panies’ full-service offering. The aim is to of-
fer more than just the brokerage and sale of 
residential properties. The operations are 
conducted in franchise form, whereby the 
regional insurance company acts as the 

Number of single-family homes sold 2017 Market shares single-family homes  
31 December 2017
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förmedling

Single-family homes, sold by Länsförsäkringar 
Fastighetsförmedling, where loans were invested 
in Länsförsäkringar Hypotek

Value of sales of single-family homes 2017

 Total value, SEK billion

 Number of residential properties sold

 Loan total, SEK M

 Number of loans

 Fastighetsbyrån 18,355

 Svensk Fastighetsförmedling 10,435

 Länsförsäkringar Fastighetsförmedling 8,234

 Mäklarhuset 3,408

 SkandiaMäklarna 2,790

 Bjurfors 2,319

 HusmanHagberg 2,223

 Mäklarringen 1,041

 Hemverket 1,027

 ERA 967

 Other brokers and private 20,673

 Fastighetsbyrån 25,7%

 Svensk Fastighetsförmedling 14,6%

 Länsförsäkringar Fastighetsförmedling 11,5%

 Mäklarhuset 4,8%

 SkandiaMäklarna 3,9%

 Bjurfors 3,2% 

 HusmanHagberg 3,1%

 Mäklarringen 1,5%

 Hemverket 1,4%

 ERA 1,3%

 Other brokers and private 29,0%

franchiser for the local branch. This also 
means that Länsförsäkringar Fastighetsför-
medling differs from other national estate- 
agent chains by always being locally based.

Länsförsäkringar Fastighetsförmedling 
can summarise strong sales figures for 2017. 
A total of 21,801 (19,938) properties were bro-
kered between January and December, of 
which 11,896 (10,923) tenant-owned apart-
ments and 8,816 (7,998) single-family homes. 
The number of properties sold increased a 
total of more than 9% year on year. Commis-
sion income rose 12% to SEK 905 M (808). 
The total sales value for the period amounted 
to SEK 48.7 billion (41.9). 

Länsförsäkringar’s sales of single-family 
homes increased in 2017, resulting in SEK 4.0 
billion (3.5) in first-lien mortgages in Länsför-
säkringar’s mortgage institution, divided 
between 1,766 (1,618) transactions. This was 
achieved despite the total market for single-
family homes declining 4% during the year, 
with the number of land registration certifi-
cates totalling 71,472 (74,559).

Länsförsäkringar offers real-estate brokerage though Länsförsäkringar Fastighetsförmedling. The operations are conducted in franchise form, whereby the regional 
insurance companies act as franchisers for the 160 local branches across Sweden.
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Earnings
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Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar AB Group

Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar AB 
Group increased to SEK 2,825 M (2,286). The 
return on equity amounted to 11% (10). 

Operating profit for the non-life insuran-
ce operations increased to SEK 1,028 M 
(644). Premiums earned after ceded reinsu-
rance rose 5% to SEK 5,623 M (5,342), and 
the combined ratio improved to 88% (92), 
partly due to run-off gains. 

The Bank Group’s operating profit increa-
sed to SEK 1,599 M (1,467)  due to higher net 
interest income. Net interest income rose 
15% to SEK 3,996 M (3,464) attributable to in-
creased volumes and lower refinancing 
costs. 

Managed assets in the unit-linked insu-
rance operations increased 12% to SEK 128 
billion (114), mainly the result of a high value 
growth trend, but also a positive net inflow. 
Operating profit strengthened to SEK 600 M 
(512). 

The Group’s investment return attribut- 
able to the insurance operations’ and Parent 
Company’s assets amounted to 4.3% (4.5). 
Properties, which totalled 23% (21) of the in-
vestment assets at the end of the year, yiel-

ded the highest return contributing 2.8 per-
centage points (2.9) to investment return. 
This was mainly driven by positive changes in 
the market value of property holdings. In the 
fixed-income portfolio, which contributed a 
total of 0.7 percentage points (1.3), mainly US 
credits had the most positive contribution. 
The contribution from equities was a positive 
1.0 percentage points (0.6), while the contri-
bution from currencies remained slightly ne-
gative. 

Capital situation 
The Länsförsäkringar AB Group’s equity in-
creased SEK 579 M during the fourth quarter 
to SEK 24,857 M. 

The Länsförsäkringar AB Group is a finan-
cial conglomerate. The Group’s companies 
are encompassed by group solvency regula-
tions in accordance with legislation on finan-
cial conglomerates, legislation on insurance 
operations and legislation on banking opera-
tions. 

At 31 December 2017, surplus capital for 
the Länsförsäkringar AB Group under the ru-
les on financial conglomerates was SEK 10.7 
billion, down SEK 0.5 billion during the quar-
ter. Own funds amounted to SEK 44.2 billion 
and the capital requirement to SEK 33.4 bil-
lion. 

The capital situation under the rules on 
insurance operations commensurated with 
the capital situation under the rules on fi-
nancial conglomerates on 31 December 2017.

The rules for calculating capital require-
ments for financial conglomerates and for 
groups under the insurance rules have been 
re-interpreted since the transition rules for 
capital requirements in the banking opera-
tions ceased to apply on 1 January 2018. In 
these calculations, Pillar II requirements for 

the banking operations are now treated as 
capital requirements. In previous calcula-
tions under the rules on financial conglome-
rates, the Pillar II requirements were consi-
dered only as a hindrance to the transfer-
ability of capital between legal entities. 

The Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio for 
consolidated situation* (the group encom-
passed by the group rules for banking opera-
tions) was 23.3% at the end of the fourth qu-
arter, down 0.1 percentage points during the 
quarter. 

* The Länsförsäkringar Bank Group consolidated with Länsförsäk-
ringar AB and the property company Utile Dulci 2 HB.

After the European Banking Authority publi- 
shed an opinion on an interpretation ques-
tion in November 2017, the calculation of own 
funds for the consolidated situation under 
the group rules for banking operations has 
been re-interpreted. This re-interpretation 
entails that own funds instruments external-
ly issued by Länsförsäkringar Bank cannot be 
fully included in own funds, but only to the 
portion of capital required to cover the capi-
tal requirements of Länsförsäkringar Bank 
AB and its subsidiaries. Accordingly, eligible 
Tier 1 capital amounted to SEK 944 M (1,200) 
and eligible Tier 2 capital to SEK 2,163 M 
(2,592) on 31 December 2017. 

On 9 October 2017, Länsförsäkringar AB 
had repaid its bond loan of SEK 1.7 billion and 
the Medium Term Note programme had ma-
tured. The loan was not refinanced. 

The Board of Länsförsäkringar AB propo-
ses that the General Meeting resolve to pay a 
dividend of SEK 300 M to the owners – the 23 
regional insurance companies, together with 
16 local insurance companies. This proposal 
should be viewed in light of the Länsförsäk-
ringar AB Group’s capital situation having  
strengthened in recent years.

Länsförsäkringar AB

 • Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar AB Group increased to SEK 2,825 M (2,286). The return on equity  
amounted to 11% (10).

 • The Länsförsäkringar AB Group’s equity amounted to SEK 24,857 M.

 • Operating profit for the non-life insurance operations increased to SEK 1,028 M (644). Premiums earned after  
ceded reinsurance rose 5% to SEK 5,623 M (5,342). The combined ratio improved to 88% (92).

 • Net sales for the Parent Company increased to SEK 2,948 M (2,894).

 • The Board of Länsförsäkringar AB proposes a dividend of SEK 300 M to the owners.

The year in brief Figures in parentheses pertain to the same period in 2016.

Länsförsäkringar AB and its subsidiaries are commissioned by the regional insurance companies to conduct joint banking and insurance operations, pursue strategic 
development activities and provide service in areas that generate economies of scale and efficiency. Länsförsäkringar AB’s non-life insurance business is divided into 
the following three business areas: Agria (pet and crop insurance), Health and Reinsurance and Special Insurance.
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The capital situation of Länsförsäkringar AB’s 
directly owned consolidated subsidiaries is 
shown in the following table.

Capital situation of subsidiaries

31 Dec 2017 30 Sept 2017 31 Dec 2016

Länsförsäkringar Sak  
Försäkrings AB

Solvency ratio, % 221 273 260

Länsförsäkringar Fondliv  
Försäkrings AB

Solvency ratio, % 152 159 150

Länsförsäkringar  
Bank Group

Common Equity 
Tier 1 capital ratio, % 24.3 24.2 24.8

Non-life insurance
Länsförsäkringar AB’s non-life insurance bu-
siness primarily comprises health, pet and 
crop insurance, some cargo, liability, proper-
ty and motor insurance as well as internatio-
nal reinsurance. Länsförsäkringar AB also 
manages the Länsförsäkringar Alliance’s joint 
reinsurance cover. 

Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar 
AB’s non-life insurance business increased 
to SEK 1,028 M (644) and the combined ratio 
improved to 88% (92). The technical result 
for the insurance operations improved to 
SEK 977 M (435). Claims payments after ce-
ded reinsurance amounted to SEK 3,764 M 
(3,793) and the claims ratio improved to 67% 
(71). The expense ratio was unchanged at 21% 
(21). 

Operating profit and the claims ratio for 
the year were generally affected by run-off 
gains following the review of provision for 
claims payments in prior years, but with va-
rying effects in individual business lines. The 
transfer of the claims portfolio for part of 
the accident and health insurance business 
to the regional insurance companies in the 
fourth quarter also contributed to the run-
off gains. First-quarter profit was also positi-
vely impacted by SEK 260 M in remuneration 
for the part of the accident and health insu-
rance business that was transferred from 
Länsförsäkringar Sak to the regional insuran-
ce companies. Profit in the fourth quarter 
was affected by goodwill impairment of SEK 
179 M from previous acquisition of the perso-
nal-risk business.

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance 
increased 5% to SEK 5,624 M (5,343). Premi-
ums earned increased despite the regional in-
surance companies renewing accident and 
health insurance policies for adults from 2017. 
The increase was due to portfolio growth and 
premium increases in Agria, previous premi-
um increases in health care insurance and 
new agreements in liability insurance. 

Agria
Agria reported a slightly lower technical re-
sult compared with the preceding year. Hor-
se insurance posted weaker earnings, while 
earnings for Agria’s UK operations improved. 
Profit in the preceding year also included 
slightly higher run-off gains. Agria’s largest 
business line in terms of volume – pet insu-
rance – continued to deliver stable, positive 
earnings. 

Health 
Earnings for health care insurance strength-
ened as a result of previous premium adjust-
ments and quality enhancements in claims 
adjustment. 

The part of the accident and health insu-
rance business that was not transferred to 
the regional insurance companies reported 
improved earnings, mainly as a result of    
higher run-off losses in the preceding year. 
Changes to product content and premium 
adjustments are expected to further improve 
earnings for health insurance in 2018. 

Reinsurance and Special
Liability insurance and assumed international 
reinsurance posted negative earnings due to 
strengthening of prior years’ reserves. Ear-
nings for assumed international reinsurance 
were also impacted by slightly higher claims 
costs from hurricanes in the Caribbean and 
southern US. Cargo insurance continued to 
deliver stable, positive earnings and also be-
nefited by run-off gains. 
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Technical result for Länsförsäkringar Sak Group

The Länsförsäkringar Sak Group’s invest-
ment return amounted to 4.5% (4.5). Proper-
ties, which totalled 27% (23) of the invest-
ment assets at the end of the period, yielded 
the highest return contributing 3.6 percenta-
ge points (3.5) to the investment return. The 
fixed-income portfolio, which has a short 
duration, had a positive effect of 0.9 percen-
tage points (0.9) on the return. The equities 
portfolio reported a positive performance 

and contributed 0.3 percentage points (0), 
whereas contributions from currencies were 
slightly weaker compared with the preceding 
year. 

Bank
Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar 
Bank Group, which is part of the Länsförsäk-
ringar AB Group, increased 9% to SEK 1,599 M 
(1,467), due to higher net interest income. Net 
interest income rose 15% to SEK 3,996 M 
(3,464) attributable to increased volumes and 
lower refinancing costs. More information 
about Länsförsäkringar Bank is available on 
pages 6-7.  

Unit-linked insurance
Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar Fond-
liv, which is part of the Länsförsäkringar AB 
Group, strengthened in 2017 to SEK 600 M 
(512), primarily due to increased income from 
growing managed assets. Total managed as-
sets increased SEK 14 billion to SEK 128 bil-
lion (114). More information about Länsför-
säkringar Fondliv is available on pages 8-9. 

Significant events after the end of the 
interim period
On 2 February 2018, Johan Agerman left his 
position as President and CEO of Länsför-
säkringar AB. In connection with this, Sören 
Westin was appointed President and CEO of 
Länsförsäkringar AB.

Risks and uncertainty factors  
of the operations 
The Länsförsäkringar AB Group’s banking 
and insurance operations give rise to various 
types of risks, with the most prominent risks 
comprising credit risk in the Bank Group and 
insurance and market risks in the non-life in-
surance and unit-linked life-assurance com-
panies. Alongside these risks, focus on cyber 
and climate risks was intensified during 2017. 

Credit risk in Länsförsäkringar Bank is 
primarily affected by the economic situation 
in Sweden since all loans are granted locally. 
The Bank Group is also exposed to liquidity 
risk and a certain level of market risk. Loan 
losses remain low and the refinancing of bu-
siness activities is highly satisfactory. A sett-
lement model has been applied since 2014 
regarding the commitment that the regional 
insurance companies have for loan losses re-
lated to the business they have originated. 
The model entails that the regional insurance 
companies cover 80% of the provision requi-
rement on the date when an impairment is 
identified, by off-setting this against a buffer 
of accrued commission.

Länsförsäkringar Alliance
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Market risks primarily arise in Länsförsäkringar 
Fondliv on the basis of indirect exposure to 
market risk, since future income in the unit- 
linked insurance operations is dependent on 
trends in the financial market. Länsförsäk-
ringar Sak’s market risk is less extensive and 
is predominantly attributable to the company’s 
investment assets.

Life-assurance risks relate primarily to 
cancellation risk in Länsförsäkringar Fondliv, 
meaning the risk of lower future fee income 
due to customers moving their insurance to 
paid-up policies or transferring them to 
another insurance company. 

Non-life insurance risks arise on the basis 
of business in Länsförsäkringar Sak, which 
conducts highly diverse business operations 
ranging from cargo insurance and reinsuran-
ce to pet insurance in the subsidiary Agria. 
These risks are reinsured to a high extent. 

The risks that arise directly in the Parent 
Company Länsförsäkringar AB are primarily 
attributable to the company’s financing, in-
vestments in liquidity and the business-sup-
port operations conducted on behalf of the 
subsidiaries and the regional insurance com-
panies.

Cyber risks arise in the use and transfer 
of digital data in the operations. Climate 
risks arising from climate change can direct-
ly or indirectly increase other risks, for ex-
ample, by increasing insurance claims, finan-
cial losses or damage to the brand. 

Länsförsäkringar AB and its insurance 
subsidiaries have permission from the 
Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority to 
calculate the capital requirement for insu-
rance operations using a partial internal mo-
del. Capital requirements for most market 
risks, non-life insurance risks and health-in-
surance risks are calculated using an inter-
nal model, whereas other types of risk are 
calculated by applying the standard formula. 
Länsförsäkringar Bank also has approval 
from the Financial Supervisory Authority to 
use the Internal Ratings Based Approach 
(IRB Approach) for credit risk measurement 
for calculating the capital requirement. 

A more detailed description of the risks 
to which the Group and Parent Company are 
exposed and how these risks are managed is 
presented in the 2016 Annual Report in 
Group note 2 Risk and capital management. 

Related-party transactions
In the first quarter of 2017, Länsförsäkringar 
Sak Försäkrings AB received SEK 260 M in 
remuneration from the regional insurance 
companies for the transferred part of the 
accident and health insurance business. Fol-
lowing Länsförsäkringar’s business model, a 
decision was made in 2015 to transfer the 
product since it was deemed to have reached 
the desired level of volume, profitability and 
stability. Länsförsäkringar Sak discontinued 
new sales of the product in 2016, and from 
2017 the insurance policies are renewed by 
the regional insurance companies. The claims 
portfolio was transferred on 1 December 
2017 after gaining approval from the Swedish 
Financial Supervisory Authority. 

In 2017, the Länsförsäkringar AB Group 
had the same type of agreements as those 
described in the notes to the 2016 Annual Re-
port. The most important related-party trans-
actions during the interim period are repor-
ted in note 3 for the Group and note 2 for the 
Parent Company. 

Fourth quarter of 2017 compared with 
third quarter of 2017 
The Länsförsäkringar AB Group’s operating 
profit amounted to SEK 624 M (704). 

Operating profit for the non-life insuran-
ce operations rose to SEK 247 M (155). The 
technical result improved to SEK 368 M (132) 
and the combined ratio declined to 75% (91), 
primarily due to significant run-off gains. 
Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance 
amounted to SEK 1,427 M (1,409). Profit in the 
fourth quarter was affected by goodwill im-
pairment of SEK 179 M from previous acqui-
sition of the personal-risk business. 

The Bank Group’s operating profit 
amounted to SEK 432 M (429). Operating in-
come increased to SEK 883 M (817) due to 
higher net interest income and dividends re-
ceived of SEK 42 M from the sale of the hol-
ding in Visa Europe. Net interest income in-
creased to SEK 1,070 M (1,015) as a result of 
continued positive volume growth. The re-
turn on equity amounted to 10.4% (10.6). 

Operating profit for Länsförsäkringar 
Fondliv declined to SEK 146 M (164), mainly 

due to a number of impairments totalling 
SEK 40 M. Managed assets for the quarter 
improved from SEK 124 billion to SEK 128 bil-
lion. Total premium income rose to SEK 2,211 
M (2,170). Commission income amounted to 
SEK 411 M (407). Operating expenses totalled 
SEK 254 M (259). 

Loss before dividends and Group contri-
butions for the Parent Company was SEK 161 
M (loss: 5). 
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Operating profit for the Länsförsäkringar AB Group 

Parent Company earnings 2017 compared 
with 2016  
Profit after financial items for the Parent 
Company amounted to SEK 1,638 M (453). 
Net profit for the year was positively impac-
ted by dividends and Group contributions of 
SEK 750 M (-) from Länsförsäkringar Fondliv 
and SEK 1,130 M (630) from Länsförsäkringar 
Sak. Net sales amounted to SEK 2,946 M 
(2,891). 

Parent Company earnings fourth quarter 
of 2017 compared with third quarter of 2017 
Profit after financial items for the Parent 
Company amounted to SEK 129 M (335). Profit 
was mainly affected by Group contributions of 
SEK 290 M (dividend of SEK 340 M) from Läns-
försäkringar Sak and impairment of SEK 89 M 
on intangible assets. 

The results of the operations during the period 
and the financial position of the Länsförsäk-
ringar AB Group and the Parent Company at 
31 December 2017 are presented in the following 
financial statements with accompanying notes.
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Income statement for Länsförsäkringar Alliance non-life insurance

SEK M
Q 4  

2017
Q 3  

2017
Q 2  

2017
Q 1  

2017
Q 4  

2016
Full-year 

2017
Full-year 

2016

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance 6,561 6,447 6,366 6,129 6,141 25,504 24,073

Investment income transferred from financial operations 86 95 74 100 123 355 453

Claims payments after ceded reinsurance –4,336 –4,911 –4,790 –4,534 –4,188 –18,570 –17,942

Operating expenses –1,182 –1,081 –1,211 –1,146 –1,369 –4,621 –4,644

Other technical revenue/expenses –38 –52 –11 –29 –75 –130 –127

Technical result for non-life insurance operations  
before bonuses and discounts 1,092 499 428 520 632 2,538 1,813

Bonuses and discounts –1,475 –73 –74 –73 –909 –1,696 –1,202

Technical result for non-life insurance operations  
after bonuses and discounts –384 425 354 447 –278 842 611

Total investment income 1,780 584 2,777 1,852 1,625 6,993 5,009

Investment income transferred to insurance operations –108 –146 –64 –116 –130 –433 –756

Other non-technical revenue/expenses –275 114 –17 –17 –137 –195 –239

Operating profit for the period 1,014 977 3,050 2,166 1,081 7,207 4,626

Balance Sheet for Länsförsäkringar Alliance non-life insurance

SEK M 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

ASSETS

Shares and participations 42,388 36,985

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities 29,473 29,091

Other investment assets 29,459 27,908

Total investment assets 101,319 93,984

Reinsurers’ portion of technical provisions 10,447 10,396

Receivables and other assets 11,125 11,254

Cash and bank balances 5,340 4,681

Prepaid expenses and accrued income 1,576 1,398

TOTAL ASSETS 129,807 121,714

EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES

Equity 54,920 48,033

Technical provisions (before ceded reinsurance) 57,011 54,664

Other provisions and liabilities 14,659 16,003

Accrued expenses and deferred income 3,218 3,014

TOTAL EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES 129,807 121,714

Länsförsäkringar Alliance non-life insurance 
Financial statements
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Key figures for Länsförsäkringar AB Group

SEK M
Q 4  

2017
Q 3  

2017
Q 2  

2017
Q 1  

2017
Q 4  

2016
Full-year 

2017
Full-year 

2016

Group

Operating profit 624 704 671 826 542 2,825 2,286

Net profit for the period 474 576 545 656 381 2,250 1,845

Return on equity, % 1) 10 10 11 12 10 11 10

Total assets, SEK billion 474 465 455 447 422 474 422

Equity per share, SEK 2) 2,269 2,214 2,161 2,103 2,046 2,269 2,046

Solvency capital 3) 27,740 26,987 26,447 25,819 25,244 27,740 25,244

Solvency margin, % 4) 467 456 449 444 452 467 452

Own funds for the group 5) 44,172 42,408 41,567 41,613 40,602 44,172 40,602

Solvency capital requirement for the group 5) 33,441 31,185 30,412 30,625 30,121 33,441 30,121

Own funds for the financial conglomerate 6) 44,172 42,408 41,562 41,554 40,352 44,172 40,352

Capital requirement for the financial conglomerate 6) 33,441 31,185 30,412 30,625 30,121 33,441 30,121

Insurance operation 7)

Non-life insurance operations

Premiums earned (after ceded reinsurance) 1,361 1,340 1,348 1,304 1,292 5,353 5,090

Investment income transferred from financial            
operations 8 6 6 6 4 26 15

Claims payments (after ceded reinsurance) 8) –659 –885 –894 –834 –818 –3,272 –3,336

Technical result, non-life operations 332 120 72 391 84 916 390

Premium income, non-life insurance

Premium income before ceded reinsurance 1,085 1,210 1,329 3,500 1,311 7,124 6,753

Premium income after ceded reinsurance 1,036 1,158 1,299 2,004 1,025 5,498 5,195

Life-assurance operations

Premium income (after ceded reinsurance) 81 78 85 232 70 477 432

Fees pertaining to financial agreements 185 180 182 177 170 724 659

Investment income, net –21 31 48 62 37 121 144

Claims payments (after ceded reinsurance) –34 –68 –84 -80 –58 –266 –267

Technical result, life-assurance operations 226 170 159 145 152 700 541

Operating profit for insurance operations 9) 393 322 349 564 347 1,628 1,194

Key figures

Cost ratio 10) 28 25 29 26 30 27 27

Expense ratio 11) 21 20 22 21 24 21 21

Claims ratio 12) 55 72 73 70 69 67 71

Combined ratio 76 91 95 90 94 88 93

Management cost ratio, life-assurance operations 13) 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9

Direct yield, % 14) –0.9 0.1 0.7 –0.0 0.4 –0.2 1.4

Total return, % 15) 1.1 0.6 1.7 0.8 1.2 4.3 4.2

Financial position

Investment assets, SEK billion 16) 14 14 14 15 14 14 14

Unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears  
the risk, SEK billion 125 121 120 116 112 125 112

Technical provisions (after ceded reinsurance),              
SEK billion 8 9 9 9 8 8 8

Länsförsäkringar AB Group
Key figures
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Key figures for Länsförsäkringar AB Group, cont.

SEK M
Q 4  

2017
Q 3  

2017
Q 2  

2017
Q 1  

2017
Q 4  

2016
Full-year 

2017
Full-year 

2016

Banking operation

Net interest income 1,070 1,015 971 940 942 3,996 3,464

Operating profit 432 429 385 353 391 1,599 1,467

Net profit for the period 327 335 300 275 294 1,237 1,137

Return on equity, % 17) 10,4 10,6 9,8 9,1 10,3 10,0 10,1

Total assets, SEK billion 315 309 300 292 276 315 276

Equity 14,328 13,988 13,687 13,393 13,182 14,328 13,182

Cost/income ratio before loan losses 18) 0.49 0.46 0.51 0.51 0.50 0.49 0.51

Investment margin, % 19) 1.35 1.34 1.30 1.29 1.36 1.32 1.28

Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio Bank Group, % 24.3 24.2 24.3 24.2 24.8 24.3 24.8

Tier 1 ratio Bank Group, % 20) 26.8 26.7 26.8 26.8 27.5 26.8 27.5

Total capital ratio Bank Group, % 21) 32.1 32.1 32.4 32.4 33.4 32.1 33.4

Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio consolidated situation, % 23.3 23.4 22.8 20.6 21.2 23.3 21.2

Tier 1 ratio consolidated situation, % 20) 24.8 25.3 24.7 22.6 23.2 24.8 23.2

Total capital ratio consolidated situation, % 21) 28.1 29.4 28.9 26.8 27.6 28.1 27.6

Loan losses in relation to loans, % 22) 0.04 0.02 0.01 0.03 0.00 0.02 0.02

1)  Operating profit and revaluations of owner-occupied property less 
standard tax at 22.0% in relation to average equity, adjusted for items in 
equity recognised in other comprehensive income excluding revaluations of 
owner-occupied property, and adjusted for Additional Tier 1 Capital loans.

2)  Equity adjusted for Additional Tier 1 Capital loan per share.

3)  Total of shareholders’ equity, adjusted for Additional Tier 1 Capital loans, 
subordinated loan and deferred taxes. 

4)  Solvency capital as a percentage of full-year premium income after ceded 
reinsurance.

5)  The group under the insurance-operation rules comprises the Parent 
Company Länsförsäkringar AB, all of the insurance companies in the Group, 
Länsförsäkringar Bank AB, Wasa Kredit AB, Länsförsäkringar Hypotek AB 
and Länsförsäkringar Fondförvaltning AB. Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings 
AB is also included in the group, despite the Länsförsäkringar Liv Group 
not being consolidated in the Länsförsäkringar AB Group. As stated in the 
EU Solvency II Directive, the calculations are made in accordance with the 
consolidation method, but with Länsförsäkringar Liv included in accordance 
with the deduction and aggregation method as permitted by the Swedish 
Financial Supervisory Authority. 

6)  The financial conglomerate comprises the same companies as the group 
according to the insurance-operation rules, see footnote 5). The calcula-
tions for the financial conglomerate are made using the same methods as 
for the group in accordance with the insurance-operation rules. Unlike the 
group under the insurance-operation rules, the transferability of profits for 
the financial conglomerate is to also be tested in other regulated companies 
than the group’s insurance companies.

7)  The earnings, key figures and financial position of the insurance operations 
are presented in accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act for 
Insurance Companies and Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority’s direc-
tives and general guidelines FFFS 2015:12.

8) Excluding claims adjustment costs.

9)  The operating profit of the insurance operations includes the Länsförsäk-
ringar Sak Group’s and Länsförsäkringar Fondliv’s investment income and 
other non-technical income and expenses.

10)  Operating expenses and claims adjustment costs as a percentage of pre-
miums earned after ceded reinsurance. Pertains only to non-life insurance.

11)  Operating expenses as a percentage of premiums earned after ceded rein-
surance. Pertains only to non-life insurance. Excluding claims adjustment 
costs in accordance with the regulation of the Swedish Financial Supervi-
sory Authority.

12)  Claims payments as a percentage of premiums earned after ceded rein-
surance. Pertains only to non-life insurance. Includes claims adjustment 
costs in accordance with the regulation of the Swedish Financial Supervi-
sory Authority.

13)  Operating expenses and claims adjustment costs inrelation to the average 
value of investment assets, investment assets for which the policyholder 
bears the investment risk and cash and cash equivalents.

14)  Direct yield refers to the total of rental income from properties, interest 
income, interest expense, dividends on shares and participations, adminis-
tration costs for asset management and operating expenses for properties 
in relation to the average value of the insurance operations’ investment 
assets and cash and bank balances for the period.

15)  Total return is calculated as the sum of direct yields and changes in the 
value of the investment portfolio in relation to the average value of the 
investment assets during the period. Pertains to non-life insurance and 
life-assurance.

16)  Investment assets comprise owner-occupied property, shares and 
participations in associated companies, loans to Group companies, shares 
and participations, bonds and other interest-bearing securities, derivatives 
(assets and liabilities), cash and cash equivalents, and interest-bearing 
libilities.

17)  Operating profit after standard tax at 22.0% in relation to average equity, 
adjusted for changes in value of financial assets recognised in equity. 

18)  Total expenses before loan losses in relation to total income.

19)  Net interest income in relation to average total assets.

20)  Tier 1 capital base in relation to the closing risk-weighted amount.

21)  Closing capital base in relation to the closing risk-weighted amount.

22)  Net loan losses in relation to the carrying amount of loans to the public 
and to credit institutions.

Länsförsäkringar Alliance 
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Consolidated income statement for Länsförsäkringar AB Group

SEK M
Q 4  

2017
Q 3  

2017
Q 2  

2017
Q 1  

2017
Q 4  

2016
Full-year 

2017
Full-year 

2016

Premiums earned before ceded reinsurance 1,852 1,817 1,813 1,938 1,919 7,420 7,018

Reinsurers’ portion of premiums earned –419 –393 –389 –417 –566 –1,618 –1,533

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance 1,433 1,424 1,424 1,521 1,352 5,802 5,485

Interest income 1,219 1,169 1,120 1,058 1,054 4,566 4,033

Interest expense –149 –156 –150 –118 –109 –573 –569

Net interest income 1,070 1,014 970 940 945 3,994 3,464

Change in unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk 3,273 1,281 1,253 4,370 3,238 10,177 7,916

Dividends in unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk – 6 – – – 6 7

Investment income, net 67 30 142 57 85 295 322

Commission income 772 739 742 734 704 2,987 2,697

Other operating income 712 525 480 749 608 2,466 2,129

Total operating income 7,326 5,018 5,011 8,371 6,931 25,726 22,021

Claims payments before ceded reinsurance –761 –1,266 –1,219 –1,122 -477 –4,368 –3,986

Reinsurers’ portion of claims payments 73 319 245 214 –394 851 402

Claims payments after ceded reinsurance –688 –947 –974 –908 –871 –3,517 –3,584

Change in life-assurance provision 35 38 34 –115 36 –8 –6

Change in unit-linked insurance liabilities – policyholder bears the risk –3,302 –1,315 –1,301 –4,434 -3,279 –10,352 –8,050

Commission expense –865 –812 –786 –776 –738 –3,239 –2,926

Staff costs –498 –480 –556 –526 –489 –2,060 –1,973

Other administration expenses –1,360 –785 –750 –771 –1,045 –3,667 –3,159

Loan losses –23 –14 –6 –15 –2 –58 –38

Total expenses –6,702 –4,314 –4,340 –7,545 –6,389 –22,901 –19,735

Operating profit 624 704 671 826 542 2,825 2,286

Tax –151 –127 –126 –171 –162 –575 –441

Net profit for the period 474 576 545 656 381 2,250 1,845

Earnings per share before and after dilution, SEK 45 55 52 63 37 216 177

Länsförsäkringar AB Group
Financial statements
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for Länsförsäkringar AB Group

SEK M
Q 4  

2017
Q 3  

2017
Q 2  

2017
Q 1  

2017
Q 4  

2016
Full-year 

2017
Full-year 

2016

Net profit for the period 474 576 545 656 381 2,250 1,845

Other comprehensive income

Items that have been transferred or can be transferred to profit for 
the period

Translation differences attributable to foreign operations 4 0 –5 –3 2 –5 –28

Cash-flow hedges 15 –20 –47 –63 -67 –115 –81

Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 12 –6 57 –13 15 51 138

Tax attributable to items that have been transferred or can be  
transferred to profit for the period –6 6 –2 17 11 14 –13

Total 25 –20 2 –62 -38 –55 16

Items that cannot be transferred to profit for the period

Revaluation of owner-occupied property 110 –1 88 13 89 211 210

Revaluation of defined-benefit pension plans 3 – – – 2 3 2

Tax attributable to items that cannot be reversed to profit for the period –25 0 –19 –3 –20 –47 –47

Total 89 0 69 10 71 167 165

Total other comprehensive income for the period, net after tax 114 –20 71 –52 32 113 182

Comprehensive income for the period 587 556 615 603 413 2,362 2,027

Consolidated statement of financial position for Länsförsäkringar AB Group

 

SEK M 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec2016

ASSETS

Goodwill 538 720

Other intangible assets 4,304 4,005

Deferred tax assets 47 19

Property and equipment 44 55

Owner-occupied property 2,887 2,721

Shares in Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB 8 8

Shares and participations in associated companies 48 82

Reinsurers’ portion of technical provisions 10,475 10,418

Loans to the public 261,444 226,705

Unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk 124,730 111,799

Shares and participations 2,570 2,024

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities 44,008 41,844

Treasury bills and other eligible bills 10,531 7,867

Derivatives 5,182 ,6,260

Change in value of hedge portfolios 248 636

Other receivables 3,576 3,734

Prepaid expenses and accrued income 1,936 1,747

Cash and cash equivalents 1,196 1,171

TOTAL ASSETS 473,773 421,816

SEK M 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital 1,042 1,042

Other capital contributed 10,272 10,272

Additional Tier 1 instruments 1,200 1,200

Reserves 948 835

Retained earnings including profit for the period 11,394 9,179

Total equity 24,857 22,529

Subordinated liabilities 2,596 2,595

Technical provisions 18,903 18,817

Unit-linked insurance liabilities – policyholder bears the risk 125,583 112,225

Deferred tax liabilities 1,533 1,339

Other provisions 115 137

Debt securities in issue 187,870 157,440

Deposits from the public 98,197 89,946

Due to credit institutions 3,996 3,873

Derivatives 1,187 1,936

Change in value of hedge portfolios 1,200 3,191

Other liabilities 3,059 3,310

Accrued expenses and deferred income 4,676 4,477

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 473,773 421,816
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity for Länsförsäkringar AB Group

SEK M Share capital
Other capital 

contributed
Additional Tier 1  

instruments Reserves

Retained  
earnings  

including  
net profit for  

the period Total

Opening equity, 1 January 2016 1,042 10,272 1,200 653 7,370 20,538

Comprehensive income for the period – – – 181 1,845 2,027

Issued additional Tier 1 instruments – – – – –36 –36

Closing equity, 31 December 2016 1,042 10,272 1,200 835 9,179 22,529

Opening equity, 1 January 2017 1,042 10,272 1,200 835 9,179 22,529

Comprehensive income for the period – – – 113 2,250 2,362

Issued additional Tier 1 instruments – – – – –34 –34

Closing equity, 31 December 2017 1,042 10,272 1,200 948 11,394 24,857

Consolidated statement of cash flows for Länsförsäkringar AB Group

SEK M 2017 2016

Operating activities

Profit before tax 2,825 2,286

Adjustment for non-cash items 3,790 4,315

Tax paid –215 –568

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 6,400 6,033

Cash flow from changes in working capital

Change in shares and participations, bonds and other interest-bearing securities and derivatives –7,625 –6,376

Increase (–)/Decrease (+) in operating receivables –36,612 –22,960

Increase (+)/Decrease (–) in operating liabilities 8,195 7,332

Cash flow from operating activities –29,642 –15,970

Investing activities

Change in shares and participations in associated companies –4 –

Investment in intangible assets –673 –595

Investment in property and equipment –28 –20

Divestment in property and equipment 8 –

Investment in owner-occupied property –31 –38

Cash flow from investing activities –729 –653

Financing activities

Change in debt securities in issue 30,430 16,467

Additional Tier 1 instruments –34 –36

Cash flow from financing activities 30,397 16,431

Net cash flow for the period 26 –192

Cash and cash equivalents, 1 January 1,171 1,374

Exchange-rate differences in cash and cash equivalents –1 –11

Cash and cash equivalents, 31 December 1,196 1,171
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Amounts are in SEK, unless otherwise stated.

Note 1 Accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as adopted by the EU. 
In addition, the Swedish Annual Accounts Act for Insurance Companies 
(1995:1560) and the regulation FFFS 2015:12 of the Swedish Financial Supervi-
sory Authority were applied. The Group also complies with recommendation 
RFR 1 Supplementary Accounting Rules for Groups and statements issued by 
the Swedish Financial Reporting Board. The interim report has been prepared 
in accordance with IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

Changes to 2017 reporting
The following changes and reclassifications have been made in the income 
statement and statement of financial position from 1 January 2017:
In order to conform with the classification in the Solvency II and CRR regu-
lations, the Group has decided to recognise financial instruments measured 
at fair value including accrued interest from 1 January 2017. The change af-
fects comparative figures in the balance sheet as per 31 December 2016. The 
asset items impacted are: treasury bills and other eligible bills by SEK 73 M, 
bonds and other interest-bearing securities by SEK 473 M, derivatives by SEK 
663 M and prepaid expenses and accrued income by a negative SEK 1,209 
M. The liability items impacted are: derivatives by SEK 257 M and accrued 
expenses and deferred income by a negative SEK 257 M. Comparative figures 
and performance measures have been updated to the new reporting method. 
The change did not affect equity. 

Income has been reclassified between other operating income and commis-
sion income. The change entails that income for services rendered that was 
previously classified as “other operating income” has now been transferred 
to “commission income.” Comparative figures have been restated and the 
full-year effect amounts to SEK 94 M. The change has no effect on net profit. 
Administration costs have been reclassified between other administration 
expenses and commission expense. Comparative figures have been restated 
and the full-year effect amounts to SEK 169 M. The change has no effect on 
net profit.
The Group has changed its policy for recognising reinstatement premiums. 
The change affects the comparative figures in the statement of financial 
position for  31 December 2016. The asset items impacted are: reinsurers’ 
portion of technical provisions by SEK 5 M and other receivables by SEK 
61 M. The liability items impacted are: technical provisions by SEK 61 M and 
other liabilities by SEK 5 M. Comparative figures and performance measures 
have been updated to the new reporting method. The change did not affect 
earnings.

Länsförsäkringar AB Group
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Note 2 Earnings per segment

1 Jan 2017–31 Dec 2017, SEK M
Non-life   

insurance
Unit-linked 

insurance Bank
Parent  

Company  

Eliminations 
and  

adjustments Total

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance 5,623 198 – – –20 5,802

Net interest income – – 3,996 – –3 3,994

Change in unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk – 10,177 – – – 10,177

Dividends in unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk – 6 – – – 6

Investment income, net 26 164 –7 1,875 –1,763 295

Commission income 23 1,583 1,789 – –409 2,987

Other operating income 639 248 19 2,946 –1,386 2,466

Total operating income 6,312 12,377 5,797 4,821 –3,580 25,726

Claims payments after ceded reinsurance –3,764 –98 – – 345 –3,517

Change in life-assurance provision – – – – –8 –8

Change in unit-linked insurance liabilities – policyholder bears the risk – –10,352 – – – –10,352

Commission expense –475 –643 –2,540 – 419 –3,239

Staff costs –454 –177 –549 –906 26 –2,060

Other administration expenses –642 –469 –1,052 –2,276 772 –3,667

Loan losses – – –58 – – –58

Total expenses –5,335 –11,739 –4,198 –3,182 1,553 –22,901

Technical result 977 638 – – –1,615 –

Non technical recognition 51 –38 – – –13 –

Operating profit 1,028 600 1,599 1,638 –2,040 2,825

Tax – – – – – –575

Net profit for the period – – – – – 2,250

Income distribution

External income 6,136 11,980 5,802 1,598 209 25,726

Internal income 176 397 –5 3,222 –3,790 –

Total operating income 6,312 12,377 5,797 4,821 –3,580 25,726

The distribution into operating segments matches how the Group is organised 
and is monitored by Group Management. The technical result is presented for 
Non-life Insurance and Unit -linked Life Assurance since the result is followed 
up by Group Management.

The Non-life Insurance segment pertains to non-life and group life-assurance; 
group life-assurance comprises a minor portion only. The Länsförsäkringar 
Alliance’s internal and external reinsurance is also included. 

The Unit-linked insurance segment pertains to life-assurance with links to 
mutual funds. 

The Bank segment pertains to deposits and lending operations. The legal 
structure of Länsförsäkringar Bank Group matches the product offering to 
customers.

The Parent Company segment pertains to service, IT and development for 
the Länsförsäkringar Alliance, administration of securities funds and costs for 
joint functions.

Depreciation/amortisation and impairment: Depreciation of property 
and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets is included in Other 
administration expenses in Non-life Insurance and Unit-linked Life Assurance. 
Amortisation pertaining to acquired intangible assets under United-linked 
Life Assurance is included in eliminations and adjustments of administration 
expenses.

Investment income, net: Investment income that is transferred from financial 
operations to insurance operations is recognised in non-life insurance.

Continued on next page
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Note 2 Earnings per segment, cont.

1 Jan 2016–31 Dec 2016, SEK M
Non-life   

insurance
Unit-linked 

insurance Bank
Parent  

Company  

Eliminations 
and  

adjustments Total

Premiums earned after ceded reinsurance 5,342 173 – – –30 5,485

Net interest income – – 3,464 – 1 3,464

Change in unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk – 7,916 – – – 7,916

Dividends in unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk – 7 – – – 7

Investment income, net 15 54 69 603 –419 322

Commission income 15 1,412 1,616 – –346 2,697

Other operating income 389 265 34 2,891 –1,449 2,129

Total operating income 5,760 9,828 5,182 3,494 –2,243 22,021

Claims payments after ceded reinsurance –3,793 –104 – – 314 –3,584

Change in life-assurance provision – – – – –6 –6

Change in unit-linked insurance liabilities – policyholder bears the risk – –8,050 – – – –8,050

Commission expense –430 –575 –2,278 – 357 –2,926

Staff costs –422 –167 –470 –927 13 –1,973

Other administration expenses –680 –435 –929 –2,114 998 –3,159

Loan losses – – –38 – – –38

Total expenses –5,326 –9,331 –3,715 –3,040 1,676 –19,735

Technical result 435 497 – – –932 –

Non technical recognition 210 15 – – –224 –

Operating profit 644 512 1,467 453 –791 2,286

Tax – – – – – –441

Net profit for the period – – – – – 1,845

Income distribution

External income 5,524 9,474 5,189 1,687 –147 22,021

Internal income 236 353 –7 1,807 –2,390 –

Total operating income 5,760 9,828 5,182 3,494 –2,243 22,021

Note 3 Related-party transactions

SEK M
Income 

Jan-Dec
Expenses 
Jan-Dec

Receivables 
31 Dec

Liabilities 
31 Dec

Commit-
ments 
31 Dec

2017

Länsförsäkringar Liv Group 385 50 103 1,038 300

Regional insurance companies 4,160 4,509 8,737 13,664 59

Other related parties 112 15 25 42 6

2016

Länsförsäkringar Liv Group 390 91 152 933 601

Regional insurance companies 3,552 3,354 8,687 12,740 59

Other related parties 25 15 19 28 5

Income and expenses include interest. Receivables and liabilities to regional insurance 
companies include technical reserves.
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Note 4 Fair value valuation techniques

Table 1 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

SEK M Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

Assets

Shares in Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB 8 8 8 8

Loans to the public 261,444 262,346 226,705 227,784

Unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk 124,730 124,730 111,799 111,799

Shares and participations 2,570 2,570 2,024 2,024

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities 44,008 44,008 41,844 41,844

Treasury bills and other eligible bills 10,531 10,531 7,867 7,867

Derivatives 5,182 5,182 6,260 6,260

Other receivables 392 386 530 510

Cash and cash equivalents 1,196 1,196 1,171 1,171

Total assets 450,061 398,208

Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities 2,596 2,682 2,595 2,675

Debt securities in issue 187,870 191,830 157,440 162,655

Deposits from the public 98,197 99,962 89,946 91,644

Due to credit institutions 3,996 3,996 3,873 3,873

Derivatives 1,187 1,187 1,936 1,936

Other liabilities 875 875 812 812

Total liabilities 294,721 256,602

Gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss in Investment income, net.

The fair value of shares in Länsförsäkringar Liv Försäkrings AB comprises cost adjusted for impairment.

The fair value of other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, due to credit institutions and other liabilities comprises a reasonable approximation based on the 
cost of the assets and liabilities since these assets and liabilities have short terms. 

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost in the statement of financial position 
When calculating the fair value (level 2) of deposits and funding from the public and loans to the public, anticipated cash flows have been discounted using a 
discount rate set at the current deposit and lending rates applied (including discounts).

Fair value (level 2) for debt securities in issue and subordinated liabilities is determined based on quoted prices. Parts of debt securities in issue that are consi-
dered to be illiquid are adjusted based on expected current issue prices. Commercial papers do not have external market prices and the fair value is determined 
based on the yield curve of each currency.
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Note 4 Fair value valuation techniques, cont.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are presented in the table based on the valuation techniques applied:

Level 1 refers to prices determined from prices listed in an active market.
Level 2 refers to prices determined by calculated prices of observable market listings.
Level 3 refers to prices based on own assumptions and judgements.

Table 2 –  Fair value valuation techniques

31 December 2017, SEK M Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Owner-occupied property – – 2,887 2,887

Unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk 124,730 – – 124,730

Shares and participations 1,603 13 954 2,570

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities 43,820 – 188 44,008

Treasury bills and other eligible bills 10,531 – – 10,531

Derivatives 1 5,181 – 5,182

Liabilities 

Derivatives 0 1,187 – 1,187

31 December 2016, SEK M

Assets

Owner-occupied property – – 2,721 2,721

Unit-linked insurance assets – policyholder bears the risk 111,799 – – 111,799

Shares and participations 1,218 20 786 2,024

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities 41,695 – 149 41,844

Treasury bills and other eligible bills 7,867 – – 7,867

Derivatives 2 6,258 – 6,260

Other liabilities – – 20 20

Liabilities

Derivatives 0 1,936 – 1,936

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 2017 or during 2016. There were no transfers from Level 3 in 2017 or 2016. 

Normally, there are no active markets for owner-occupied property within Level 3, which is why fair value is estimated using models based on discounted cash 
flows. The method applied to the calculation of fair value is a combination of the location-price method, based on reported purchases of comparable properties, 
and a return-based cash-flow method. The return method is based on a calculation of the present value of future actual cash flows in the form of operating net, 
which has been successively adjusted to market over 10 years and the present value of the estimated residual value in year 10. The residual value was estimated 
by performing a constant capitalisation of an estimated market-adjusted operating net. 

Level 3 shares and participations measured at fair value are measured at equity per share based on the most recent company report. Delisted, insolvent compa-
nies are measured at zero if no other listing can be found. Länsförsäkringar Bank AB holds shares and participations measured at cost since the holdings cannot 
be reliably measured at fair value, and are impaired if objective evidence exists to recognise an impairment loss. The assessment is based on the most recent 
Annual Report and forecast earnings. 

The fair value of Level 2 shares and participations that pertain to unquoted Series B shares with conversion rights to quoted Series A shares without restrictions 
is measured based on the price of the Series A share on the balance-sheet date. 

Level 2 derivatives essentially refer to swaps for which fair value has been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows. 

Bonds and other interest-bearing securities in Level 3 that are not quoted in an active market comprise interest-bearing, unquoted loans. Valuations are perfor-
med by external managers based on generally accepted valuation techniques, which means that the underlying holdings held by the issuer of the loan are valued 
based on relevant observable market data wherever available. Holdings for which market data is not available are measured at a fair value corresponding to the 
cost adjusted for impairment.
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Note 4 Fair value valuation techniques, cont.

Table 3 – Change level 3

SEK M
Owner-occupied 

property
Shares and  

participations

Bonds and other  
interest-bearing  

securities Other receivables Total

Opening balance, 1 January 2017 2,721 786 149 20 3,675

Acquisition 31 21 35 – 87

Divestments – –10 – –20 –30

Recognised in net profit for the year –77 158 4 – 85

Recognised in other comprehensive income 211 – – – 211

Closing balance, 31 December 2017 2,887 954 188 – 4,029

Opening balance, 1 January 2016 2,545 650 100 – 3,295

Acquisition 38 6 35 20 98

Recognised in net profit for the year –72 129 15 – 72

Recognised in other comprehensive income 210 – – – 210

Closing balance, 31 December 2016 2,721 786 149 20 3,675
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Income statement for Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company 

SEK M
Q 4  

2017
Q 3  

2017
Q 2  

2017
Q 1  

2017
Q 4  

2016
Full-year 

2017
Full-year 

2016

Net sales 899 684 689 676 858 2,948 2,894

Operating expenses

External expenses –748 –466 –457 –492 –723 –2,163 –2,100

Staff costs –216 –205 –239 –228 –218 –888 –909

Depreciation/amortisation and impairment of property and equipment 
and intangible assets –100 –11 –11 –11 –10 –133 –33

Operating profit/loss –166 2 –17 –55 –93 –236 –149

Profit/loss from financial items

Profit from participations in Group companies 301 354 1,263 13 167 1,931 679

Interest income and similar profit/loss items –1 –3 –1 10 3 5 4

Interest expense and similar profit/loss items –5 –19 –19 –20 -18 –63 –81

Profit/loss after financial items 129 335 1,226 –52 59 1,638 453

Tax –15 0 0 1 –2 –13 –7

Profit/loss for the period 114 335 1,226 –51 57 1,625 447

Statement of comprehensive income for Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company 

SEK M
Q 4  

2017
Q 3  

2017
Q 2  

2017
Q 1  

2017
Q 4  

2016
Full-year 

2017
Full-year 

2016

Profit/loss for the period 114 335 1,226 –51 57 1,625 447

Other comprehensive income

Items that have been transferred or can be transferred to profit for 
the period

Cash–flow hedges 1 6 5 5 4 17 17

Change for the year in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets – – 3 –9 –2 –6 8

Tax attributable to items that have been transferred or can be  
transferred to profit for the period – –1 –2 1 –1 –2 –6

Total other comprehensive income for the period, net after tax 1 5 6 –3 1 9 19

Comprehensive income for the period 115 339 1,232 –54 58 1,633 466

Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company
Financial statements
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Balance sheet for Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company 

SEK M 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

ASSETS

Fixed assets

Intangible assets 398 459

Property and equipment 61 78

Financial assets

Shares and participations in Group companies 17,912 17,858

Other fixed assets 737 869

Total financial assets 18,650 18,727

Total fixed assets 19,109 19,264

Current assets 982 867

Cash and bank balances 254 251

TOTAL ASSETS 20,345 20,382

EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES

Restricted equity 6,033 6,085

Non-restricted equity 12,578 10,893

Total equity 18,611 16,978

Provisions 65 79

Derivatives – 23

Long-term liabilities 216 440

Current liabilities 1,453 2,862

TOTAL EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES 20,345 20,382

Statement of cash flows for Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company 

SEK M 2017 2016

Operating activities

Profit after financial items 1,638 453

Adjustment for non-cash items –209 –277

Tax paid –38 –1

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 1,391 175

Cash flow from changes in working capital

Increase (–)/Decrease (+) in operating receivables 371 832

Increase (+)/Decrease (–) in operating liabilities 50 218

Cash flow from operating activities 1812 1,225

Investing activities

Acquisition of shares in Group company –55 –965

Acquisition of intangible assets –50 –246

Acquisition of property and equipment –8 –8

Divestment in property and equipment 2 3

Cash flow from investing activities –110 –1,217

Financing activities

Amortisation loan –1,699 –

Cash flow from financing activities –1,699 –

Cash flow for the period 3 8

Cash and cash equivalents, 1 January 251 243

Cash and cash equivalents, 31 December 254 251
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Statement of changes in equity for Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company

Restricted equity Non-restricted equity

SEK M Share capital

Development 
Expenditures 

Fund
Statutory 

reserve
Fair value 

reserve 
Hedging 
reserve

Share  
premium 

reserve

Retained 
earnings, 
including  
net profit  

for the year Total

Opening equity, 1 January 2016 1,042 – 4,,801 –1 –27 5,471 5,224 16,511

Comprehensive income for the period – – – 5 14 – 447 467

Capitalised proprietary development – 241 – – – – –241 –

Closing equity, 31 December 2016 1,042 241 4,801 5 –13 5,471 5,430 16,978

Opening equity, 1 January 2017 1,042 241 4,801 5 –13 5,471 5,430 16,978

Comprehensive income for the period – – – –4 13 – 1,625 1,633

Capitalised proprietary development – –52 – – – – 52 –

Closing equity, 31 December 2017 1,042 189 4,801 1 – 5,471 7,107 18,611
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Note 1 Accounting policies

The Parent Company prepares its accounts according to the Swedish Annual 
Accounts Act (1995:1554). The company also applies the Swedish Financial 
Reporting Board’s recommendation RFR 2 Accounting for Legal Entities and 
statements issued pertaining to listed companies. The regulations in RFR 2 
stipulate that in the annual accounts the parent company is to apply all IFRS 
adopted by the EU and statements to the extent that this is possible within the 
framework of the Swedish Annual Accounts Act and the Pension Obligations 
Vesting Act and with consideration to the relationship between accounting and 
taxation. The recommendation stipulates the permissible exceptions from and 
additions to IFRS.

Changed accounting policies 2017
In order to conform with the classification in the Solvency II and CRR regu-
lations, the Parent Company has decided to recognise financial instruments 
measured at fair value including accrued interest from 1 January 2017. The 
change affects comparative figures in the balance sheet as per 31 December 
2016. The asset items impacted are: bonds and other interest-bearing secu-
rities by SEK 9 M and prepaid expenses and accrued income by a negative 

SEK 9 M. The liability items impacted are: derivatives by SEK 6 M and accrued 
expenses and deferred income by a negative SEK 6 M. Comparative figures 
and performance measures have been updated to the new reporting method. 
The change did not affect equity. 

The carrying amount of Länsförsäkringar AB’s participations in Utile Dulci 
2 HB was changed in the second quarter of 2017 to an amount corresponding 
to the total of the cost plus the participation in the partnership’s profit. This 
resulted in previously accrued profit that was recognised in the balance 
sheet as “receivables from Group companies” instead being recognised as 
“shares and participations in Group companies.” Profit was not affected by 
the change in accounting policy. The effect of the change totalled SEK 49 M 
on 31 December 2016. The reason for the change is to follow dominant prac-
tice and to present a clearer connection between profit and the underlying 
assets in the partnership.

In all other respects, the interim report has been prepared in accordance 
with the same accounting policies and calculation methods applied in the 
2016 Annual Report.

The President submitted the report for Länsförsäkringar AB Group 
 (pages 11-13, 16-30) on behalf of the Board of Directors. 

This report has not been reviewed by the company’s auditor.

Stockholm 12 February 2018

Sören Westin
President and CEO

Note 2 Disclosures on related parties

SEK M
Income 

Jan-Dec
Expenses 
Jan-Dec

Receivables 
31 Dec

Liabilities 
31 Dec

Commit-
ments 
31 Dec

2017

Group companies 3,225 –140 677 292 –

Länsförsäkringar Liv Group 234 –15 20 163 300

Regional insurance companies 1,376 –34 121 639 –

Other related parties 7 –0 0 – –

2016

Group companies 1,967 –203 553 287 –

Länsförsäkringar Liv Group 227 –17 25 279 601

Regional insurance companies 1,342 –52 156 437 –

Other related parties 21 –0 – – –

Income and expenses include interest.

In March 2016, Länsförsäkringar AB acquired participations in the property company Utile 
Dulci 2 HB from Länsförsäkringar Sak. The company is a wholly owned Group company.

Note 3 Pledged assets and contingent liabilities

SEK M 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016

Pledged assets

Pledged shares in subsidiaries 300 601

Contingent liabilities

Part-owner of Utile Dulci 2 HB 23 17

Amounts are in SEK, unless otherwise stated.

Länsförsäkringar AB, Parent Company
Notes to the financial statements
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Income statement for Länsförsäkringar Liv, Group

SEK M
Q 4  

2017
Q 3  

2017
Q 2  

2017
Q 1  

2017
Q 4  

2016
Full-year 

2017
Full-year 

2016

Premium income after ceded reinsurance 381 361 379 412 438 1,533 1,720

Investment income net 1,249 752 1,056 1,713 -430 4,770 6,027

Claims payments –1,411 -1,287 -1,,332 –1,374 -1,378 –5,404 -5,683

Change in technical provisions –295 825 1,058 402 2,106 1,990 1,221

Operating expenses –129 –101 –93 –94 -136 –417 –447

Technical result, life insurance operations –205 550 1,068 1,059 600 2,472 2,838

Non-technical expenses –14 –27 –27 –28 -28 –96 –110

Profit before tax –219 523 1,041 1,031 572 2,376 2,728

Tax 18 –20 –5 –6 -20 –13 –46

Profit for the period –201 503 1,036 1,025 552 2,363 2,682

Items that cannot be transferred to profit and loss – – – – - – –

Comprehensive income for the period –201 503 1,036 1,025 552 2,363 2,682

Balance sheet for Länsförsäkringar Liv, Group

SEK M 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

ASSETS

Investment assets 115,349 117,382

Reinsurers’ portion of technical provisions 472 477

Receivables 1,219 1,909

Other assets 5,421 4,763

Prepaid expenses and accrued income 102 144

TOTAL ASSETS 122,563 124,675

EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES

Equity 24,405 23,050

Technical provisions 90,166 92,217

Provisions for other risks and expenses 149 240

Deposits from reinsurers 472 477

Liabilities 7,162 8,478

Accrued expenses and deferred income 210 213,

TOTAL EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES 122,563 124,675

Changes to 2017 reporting
In order to conform with the classification in the solvency regulations, financial instruments are measured at fair value including accrued interest from 1 January 2017.  
The change affects comparative figures in the balance sheet as per 31 December 2016. The asset items impacted are: bonds and other interest-bearing securities by  
SEK 646 M, interest-bearing securities issued by Group companies by SEK 23 M, derivatives by SEK 305 M and prepaid expenses and accrued income by a negative SEK 612 M. 
The liability items impacted are: derivatives by SEK 363 M. Comparative figures have been updated to the new reporting method. The change did not affect equity.

Länsförsäkringar Liv, Group 
Financial statements
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Malin Rylander Leijon, CFO Länsförsäkringar AB
malin.rylander-leijon@lansforsakringar.se, +46 (0)8-588 408 64, +46 (0)73-964 08 64 
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Länsförsäkringar AB (publ),
Corporate Registration Number 556549-7020
Street address: Tegeluddsvägen 11-13,
Postal address: SE-106 50 Stockholm
Telephone: +46 (0)8-588 400 00

Financial calendar 2018

Annual Report 2017 Länsförsäkringar AB 13 March

Annual Review 2017 Länsförsäkringar Alliance 13 March

Interim Report January-June 2018 29 August

This interim report contains such information that Länsförsäkringar AB (publ) must 
publish in accordance with the Securities Market Act. The information was submitted 
for publication on 12 February 2018 at 13:00 Swedish time.


